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Instructions to Respondents 
 

How to Submit a Response to this RFP 
 
Please follow the Proposal Guidelines / Response Format detailed in Section 4.0. Ensure that a person 
authorized to sign on behalf of the Respondent complete and sign the Appendix A Respondent RFP 
Response Form leaving the rest of that page otherwise unaltered and include the originally-signed and 
completed page as the cover page of your submission package. 
 
Respondents may submit one (1) electronic copy of the Proposal in Microsoft Word Document (docx) or 
Adobe Portable Document File (PDF) format by email marked in the subject line with the RFP name, 
“HRMS Vendor” and RFP number “202101” and sent to the following email address. 
 
 caitlin.bruce@pacificcoastal.com 
 
Proposal Submissions must be received by Pacific Coastal Airlines by December 8, 2021 @ 5:00PM PT 
 
Pacific Coastal Airlines will reply acknowledging receipt and it is the Respondent’s responsibility to ensure 
that Pacific Coastal Airlines has received their Proposal. 
 
Please do not submit any individual file larger than 20MB by email. 
 
Respondents who have not been contacted by end of business day on January 24, 2022, have not been 
short listed. 
 

Clarifications 
 
Please direct all written enquiries related to this RFP including any requests for information, questions, 
and clarification, to the Pacific Coastal Airlines contact email below.  All questions and enquiries are to be 
submitted no less than three (3) working days before RFP closing date.  Please do not direct any 
questions to any other Pacific Coastal Airlines personnel.  All enquiries and responses will be recorded 
and may be shared and distributed to all Respondents at Pacific Coastal Airlines’ option. Please include 
the RFP name and RFP number in the subject line. 
 
RFP Enquiries: Ms. Caitlin Bruce 
  604-227-5390 
  caitlin.bruce@pacificcoastal.com 
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1.0 Background and Scope 
 
Pacific Coastal Airlines, herein referred to as “PCA”, is a privately owned British Columbia-based regional 
airline operating from Vancouver International Airport’s South Terminal (YVR) that currently flies to 18 
airports in British Columbia. We are the sixth-largest airline operating at Vancouver International Airport 
(YVR) based on total outbound seats, and the third-largest based on take-offs and landings. Connecting 
to additional destinations along the south coast of British Columbia through its affiliate airline Wilderness 
Seaplanes, located in Port Hardy on northern Vancouver Island. Pacific Coastal is also the operator of 
WestJet Link, providing service from its base in Calgary to Cranbrook, Dawson Creek, Lethbridge, 
Lloydminster, and Medicine Hat. 
 
We honour our motto of People Friendly, People First. An equal opportunity employer, we encourage a 
positive, caring workplace and put a high value on collaboration, accountability, and loyalty. We are very 
proud to give back and to support the communities that we serve. 
 
PCA is seeking a vendor to provide and implement a new “Human Resource Management System” 
(HRMS) with built in Payroll functionality.  PCA currently does not employ a HRMS to manage its 
employee records and associated HR information.  PCA is pursuing a cloud based HRMS solution to 
transition away from manual processes and various spreadsheet based tracking of information. PCA has 
medium term objectives to review Learning Management Systems (LMS) and therefore any HRMS 
solution we seek will likely require flexible integration options with industry leading LMS software on the 
market. We are looking for a long term technology partner as the HRMS and Payroll system will be an 
integral part of PCA’s Cloud Systems strategy. 
 

1.1. Scope 
Headquartered in Richmond BC, PCA has 350+ employees across two provinces (BC and AB).  
PCA currently only operates in Canada and do not have any employees stationed outside of the 
country. The scope of the HRMS and Payroll system implementation is as follows: 

1.1.1. Implement Employee Records Management and migrate data from various sources 
including MS Dynamics GP, in-house custom built SQL Server applications, spreadsheets, 
flat files and documents in file shares 

1.1.1.1. Implement various HR related forms and workflows that facilitate employee 
status changes, pay changes and recruitment requests from managers 

1.1.2. Implement an Absence & Time-Off Management module within the HRMS and migrate 
associated historic and status data. 

1.1.2.1. Implement employee self-service option with request and approval workflows 
1.1.2.2. Implement Time-Off Planning function 
1.1.2.3. Integrate time off calculations with Payroll Function 
1.1.2.4. Configure options to accommodate for tiered entitlement 

1.1.3. Implement an Payroll processing function that is integrated with both the HRMS and MS 
Dynamics GP for Financials 

1.1.3.1. Draws information from Time Tracking and Attendance Management module for 
calculations 

1.1.3.2. Configure automatic benefits deductions, secure electronic paystub and tax 
documents distribution, automated ROE generation, workflow for year-end 
processing, automate pay rate changes based on rate tables and other employee 
record information 

1.1.4. Implement Time Tracking and Attendance Management function 
1.1.4.1. Implement workforce scheduling for shift based roles and positions; integrate 

workforce schedules with flight crew scheduling software, BlueOne Crew Control 
Software.  

1.1.4.2. Implement clock in/clock out functions for certain roles and positions (biometrics 
or other forms of identification) 

1.1.4.3. Implement self-serve time sheeting for certain roles and positions with approval 
workflow 

1.1.4.4. Develop a integration to ingest data from in-house custom developed flight crew 
time credit system to generate time sheets automatically for approval workflow 
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1.1.4.5. Implement function that allows for holiday calendars, custom pay rates, overtime 
tracking 

1.1.5. Implement an Onboarding workflow for newly hired employees 
1.1.5.1. Develop workflow that automatically assigns tasks to HR personnel to facilitate 

the various steps involved in onboarding new employees 
1.1.5.2. Implement automated workflow for document distribution and signature collection 

for various onboarding related forms 
1.1.5.3. Implement automated benefits and payroll enrollment 
1.1.5.4. Automatically provision self-service profile and credentials to new employees (or 

utilize SSO) 
1.1.6. Implement Recruitment Management module 

1.1.6.1. Create and implement recruitment workflows adapted to our hiring process 
1.1.6.2. Implement a candidate records management 

1.1.7. Offer a comprehensive Service Level Agreement for both system availability, data 
safeguard and end user support.  

1.1.7.1. Provide SLA guaranteed End User Support during required core business hours 
between 7:00AM and 6:00PM Pacific Time from Monday to Friday  
 

1.2. Out-of-Scope 
The following items are considered out of scope for the initial phase of the HRMS 
implementation covered in this RFP.  However, for future phases of HRMS rollout, some of these 
system capabilities may be considered during the evaluation of the RFP responses. 

1.2.1.1. Implementation of custom recruitment website 
1.2.1.2. Implementation of an Employee Performance Management System/Module 
1.2.1.3. Implementation of a Learning Management System including Training Content 

Development, Curriculum Delivery, Testing/Examination and tracking of Certification 
1.2.1.4. Implementation of an integrated Benefits Administration Module 
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2.0 Terms and Conditions 
 

2.1. This RFP is an inquiry and Request for Proposal only and does not imply a commitment by 
PCA to proceed with the work or to purchase any product(s) and/or solution(s).  PCA will 
advise only the Respondent(s) it decides to proceed with further, as defined herein. 

2.2. Until such time as a contract is awarded, PCA reserves the right in its sole discretion not to 
proceed with the work, or purchase any product(s) or solution(s), to proceed by way of a 
Request for Proposal (RFP), to issue one or more further requests for information by a 
Request for Additional Information (RFAI), or to negotiate a contract individually with any 
Respondent to this RFP for all or part of the work, product(s), or solution(s). 

2.3. PCA reserves the right to conclude any or all of the processes relating to this requirement 
should it be in the best interest of PCA as determined by PCA.  PCA is not bound to enter into 
a contract with any qualified Respondent. 

2.4. If PCA elects to proceed by way of an RFP, or if PCA elects to request more information by 
way of a RFAI or by any other method, PCA may in its sole discretion create a Respondent list 
using any or all Respondents to this RFP; PCA may rank responses based on the evaluation 
and/or requirements defined herein and select a shortlist of one or more of those which ranked 
most highly; or if deemed in PCA’s best interest, it may include additional Respondents. 

2.5. This RFP should not be considered a request for or an authorization to perform any work or to 
supply any goods or services.  Any work undertaken by the Respondent and any costs and/or 
expenses involved in the preparation of replying to this RFP, and for subsequent presentations 
and/or demonstrations and/or negotiations will be the sole responsibility of the Respondent, 
including any travel. 

2.6. PCA reserves the right to modify this RFP at any time and at its sole discretion.  This includes 
the right to cancel this RFP at any time without entering into a contract with any Respondent.  

2.7. PCA reserves the right to accept late responses from any Respondent at any given point in 
the RFP process where PCA sees fit.  

2.8. PCA reserves the right to reject any Respondent’s response without disclosing any reason or 
cause. 

2.9. Should PCA deem a Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) necessary to proceed with the RFP, 
PCA reserves the right to request vendors to sign a NDA. Refusal to commit to a requested 
NDA may disqualify that vendor from the RFP process. 

2.10. PCA reserves the right to use third party consultants at any stage of the RFP process to assist 
PCA with the vendor selection and proposal evaluation.  Third party consultants are required 
to sign a Non-Disclosure Agreement to ensure that information from both PCA and the 
Respondent’s proposal are used solely for the purpose of the RFP. 

2.11. All information related to the evaluation of the received proposals are considered confidential. 
2.12. Any information about PCA discovered by the Respondent or provided to the Respondent 

through this RFP process is considered confidential and therefore the Respondent must not 
disclosed such information to any person or entity except to those of the Respondent's 
employees, officers, and directors who have a clear and bona fide need to know the 
information in order to prepare a Response to this 

2.13. Governing Law / Jurisdiction. This RFP shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the Province of British Columbia which shall be deemed to be the proper law 
hereof and in so doing the Courts of British Columbia shall have exclusive jurisdiction to 
determine all disputes and claims arising out of or in any way connected with this RFP. 

2.14. Limitation of Damages. By submitting a response to this RFP, the Respondent waives any 
claim for loss of profits if no agreement is made with the Respondent. 

2.15. Liability for Errors. While PCA has made considerable efforts to ensure an accurate 
representation of information in this RFP, the information contained in this RFP is supplied 
solely as a guideline for Respondents and is not necessarily comprehensive or exhaustive.  
Nothing in this RFP is intended to relieve Respondents from forming their own opinions and 
conclusions in respect of the matters addressed in the RFP. 
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3.0 RFP Process 
 

3.1. Respondents’ proposal submissions must be received by closing date and time specified on the 
cover of this RFP. 

3.2. Based on the responses received for the RFP, PCA may: 
3.2.1. Decide not to proceed with the project, work, product or solution; 
3.2.2. Decide to defer the project, work, product or solution; 
3.2.3. Request further information by issuing a “Request For Additional Information” (RFAI); 
3.2.4. Develop and Re-issue a revised Request for Proposal (RFP); or  
3.2.5. Shortlist one (1) or several Respondents to formally present their proposal to the PCA’s 

appointed Vendor Selection Committee 
3.2.6. Negotiate a contract directly with a Respondent; or 
3.2.7. Break up the scope of the RFP and award individual contracts for different parts of the 

project, work, product, or solution. 
3.3. At any point in the RFP process, PCA may request a technology review/evaluation of the 

proposed solution. This technology review/evaluation may require an interview and a 
demonstration environment be set up so that PCA can perform the needed evaluation.  The 
Respondent is required to ensure that resources are available to support such a review. 

3.4. After the RFP submissions are evaluated, PCA may request the short-listed Respondents(s) to 
provide presentations and take PCA through a deep dive of their proposals.  Only short-listed 
Respondents(s) will be notified and invited to present and they will be informed of the deep dive 
parameters, specific time, date and location for their presentation. All costs incurred in the 
preparation of the responses and the presentation, including all travel costs, are the 
responsibility of the Respondent and are not billable to PCA.  PCA reserves the right not to 
continue with Respondents(s) who are not available for a presentation. 

3.5. Final selection of any Respondent’s solution is subject to reference checks and financial review 
under the sole opinion of PCA. 

3.6. PCA reserves all rights defined herein Section 2, Terms and Conditions, as deemed in the best 
interest of PCA. 

3.7. Instructions for Submission 
3.7.1. Respondents may submit one (1) electronic copy of the Proposal in Microsoft Word 

Document (docx) or Adobe Portable Document File (PDF) format by email marked in the 
subject line with the RFP name and number and sent to the email address specified on the 
cover of this RFP. 

3.7.2. PCA will reply acknowledging receipt and it is the Respondent’s responsibility to ensure that 
PCA has received their Proposal. 

3.7.3. Please do now submit anything individual file larger than 20MB by email. 
3.7.4. Respondents who have not been contacted by end of business day on January 24, 2022, 

have not been short listed. 
3.7.5. Refer to Clarifications and Enquiries instructions on Page 4. 
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4.0 Proposal Guidelines / Response Format 
 
While Respondents are invited to highlight any other approaches and other deliverables that may achieve 
PCA’s goals reflected in this RFP, it is mandatory that all proposal submissions include the following 
minimum information in your response. 
 

4.1. Response Format 
4.1.1. The language used in all responses to this RFP shall be English. 
4.1.2. Please enclose a completed and signed copy of Appendix A: Respondent RFP 

Response Form AS THE COVER PAGE of your submission package.  
4.1.3. Please provide your response in the same sequence of topics as listed below (see section 

4.2). 
4.1.4. Please provide a Table of Contents for your submission. 
4.1.5. Please include your company profile which includes an introductory overview of your 

company background and profile within your industry while highlighting your products and 
services offerings. (as per section 4.2.1) 

4.1.6. Please state if there are any potential areas of conflict of interest that may exist if PCA were 
to engage in any business dealings with your firm. Please list any existing contacts or 
previous business dealings you have with PCA. 

4.1.7. Please provide three (3) references of successful HRMS implementations your organization 
has completed in the past three (5) years, that are similar in scope, size and value to PCA’s 
requirements. Please provide contact information and detailed description of each of the 
projects/implementation used in your references using the format illustrated in Appendix B 
Recommended format for List of References. 

4.1.8. Please attach a completed Appendix B to your submission. 
 

4.2. Response Details 
4.2.1. Company Profile and Overview 

4.2.1.1. Within your Company Profile, please describe company size and whether your 
company is public or private and whether it is a subsidiary of, or affiliated with, a 
corporate or holding company. 

4.2.1.2. Please provide your company’s total revenue and operating profit for last two 
fiscal years. 

4.2.1.3. For how many years has your company been offering the HRMS product under 
its current business under or any former names your company has operated under? 

4.2.1.4. Please provide an overview of your customer base in Canada referencing 
implementations of your HRMS product offering.  

4.2.1.5. Please provide evidence of relevant experience by including a brief description of 
your company’s Implementation and support team.  Provide information and example 
resumes showing the qualifications and experience of proposed resources of your 
project management and implementation specialists along with any post 
implementation support personnel. 

4.2.1.6. Are there any judgments, claims, arbitration proceedings or suits pending or 
outstanding against your organization or its officers?  If yes, please provide the 
details. 
 

4.2.2. Human Resource Management System Capabilities 
4.2.2.1. Employee Records 

4.2.2.1.1. What is tracked in terms of employee records? 
4.2.2.1.2. Does the HRMS save position, status and compensation history?  
4.2.2.1.3. Does the HRMS have customizable fields?  
4.2.2.1.4. What custom fields are available for employee records? (e.g. dates? 

Text only? Etc.) 
4.2.2.1.5. How many custom fields are available (approximately)? 
4.2.2.1.6. Can reports be pulled for custom fields? 
4.2.2.1.7. Can documents (e.g. Word, PDF, etc.) be saved in an employee 

file/record?  
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4.2.2.1.8. Does the HRMS allow for e-signatures, for example can employees can 
sign forms or electronically acknowledge through the system? 

4.2.2.1.9. Does the HRMS create organizational charts based on inputted 
supervisory information? 

4.2.2.1.10. Please provide a summary of any alerts and reminders that are 
available. 

4.2.2.1.11. Does the HRMS have a workflow that would allow the manager to submit 
a notification to HR that an employee’s status is changing (e.g. position, pay 
rate, etc.)? Please illustrate and provide examples of your solution. 

4.2.2.1.12. Does the HRMS have the ability to set up a workflow that requires 
approval? For example, a manager submits a Staffing Request Form, which is 
then sent to the President for approval, and subsequently the HR department is 
notified? Please illustrate and provide examples of your solution. 

4.2.2.2. Recruitment and Onboarding 
4.2.2.2.1. Does the HRMS integrate with any third-party recruitment tools/applicant 

tracking systems? If so, which ones? 
4.2.2.2.2. Does the HRMS have a workflow that would support new hire 

paperwork? (e.g. New hires fill out their personal information, tax forms, etc. 
electronically so no manual data entry is needed) 

4.2.2.2.3. Can documents be automatically shared during parts of a new hire 
workflow? (ie. once employee submits new hire paperwork electronically, this 
triggers an email or specific documents to be automatically sent to them). 
Please illustrate and provide examples of your solution. 

4.2.2.2.4. Can the HRMS automatically assign tasks to specified internal 
stakeholders who need to take action in particular situations, such as when a 
new hire is set up? (e.g. when a new hire starts, multiple individuals need to be 
notified to take action to set up different accounts for this new hire; each action 
needs to be tracked to ensure that the overall workflow is complete) Please 
illustrate and provide examples of your solution. 

4.2.2.3. Absence and Time Off Management 
4.2.2.3.1. Does the HRMS allow customized absence and time off policies, 

including vacation and sick time? 
4.2.2.3.2. PCA allows up to 3 paid + 2 unpaid Personal Leave Days per year. 

Would the HRMS be able to allow this maximum of 5 days total? A “day” for 
some departments/positions is calculated as an average days’ pay based on the 
last 4 weeks of work. Is this a type of automatic calculation that the HRMS could 
do? 

4.2.2.3.3. Does the HRMS have a vacation bidding feature, or a feature that allows 
for booking/planning of future time off? Please describe your solution. 

4.2.2.3.4. Does the HRMS support custom approval processes and workflow for 
leave requests? Please describe your solution. 

4.2.2.3.5. Does the HRMS have a customizable statutory holiday calendar? Please 
describe your solution. 

4.2.2.3.6. Does the HRMS automatically calculate statutory holiday pay for 
employees who do and do not work the holiday? Please describe your solution. 

4.2.2.3.7. Does the HRMS support paid time off banks? Please describe your 
solution. 

4.2.2.3.8. Does the HRMS support vacation bank? Please describe your solution. 
4.2.2.3.9. Does the HRMS support sick bank? (Employees accrue sick time per 

pay. PCA has different accrual rates for different employment statuses.) Please 
describe your solution. 

4.2.2.3.10. Does the HRMS support floating statutory holiday banks? (In some 
positions/department, employees bank each stat holiday that occurs to be taken 
at a later date.) Please describe your solution. 

4.2.2.3.11. Does the HRMS support overtime and different ways of handling OT? (In 
some positions, employees may choose to bank OT instead of being paid out). 
Please describe your solution. 

4.2.2.4. Performance Management 
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4.2.2.4.1. Does the HRMS have a performance management module? If available, 
what are its capabilities? 

4.2.2.5. Reporting 
4.2.2.5.1. Does the HRMS have pre-configured reports? If yes, please list what 

reports are available as your standard product offering. 
4.2.2.5.2. Are overtime, under time and absenteeism reports part of your standard 

available reports? 
4.2.2.5.3. Does the HRMS allow for customized reports for both Payroll & HR 

functions? Please explain to what extent and describe the tools used to 
customize reports.  Is a report writer used? Is a “basic field chooser” available to 
select what data we want to pull into a custom report. 

4.2.2.5.4. Can all reports be exported to Excel/CSV? 
4.2.2.5.5. If equipped with Time Management module, does the HRMS allow for 

self-serve reports for managers to review their staff’s weekly regular hours, 
overtime hours and paid time off? 

4.2.2.5.6. Does the HRMS have Point-in-Time reporting? 
4.2.2.6. Benefits Administration 

4.2.2.6.1. Does the HRMS integrate/sync with the Sun Life benefits platform? 
4.2.2.7. Payroll Management 

4.2.2.7.1. Does the HRMS Payroll Module have full service Canadian payroll? Can 
it accommodate for more than one CRA Payroll account? 

4.2.2.7.2. Is payroll and HR data synchronized? 
4.2.2.7.3. Does the HRMS automatically populate Records of Employment? 
4.2.2.7.4. Can the HRMS accept a data upload via spreadsheet for payroll 

purposes? (E.g. crew pay information?) 
4.2.2.7.5. Can the HRMS automate pay increases based on pay scales, by position 

(specifically, pay increases automatically update pay and benefits information 
based on length of service). 

4.2.2.7.6. Does the HRMS have the ability to pay on a piece rate system? 
4.2.2.7.7. Does the HRMS allow to track hours doing certain jobs? (E.g. Some 

eligible employees may receive top up premiums for specific hours or shifts, in 
addition to their regular pay rate.)  

4.2.2.7.8. Does the HRMS have a maximum number of pay codes able to be 
created?  

4.2.2.7.9. Does the HRMS Payroll Module generate accounting entries for payroll 
cost? Can the HRMS system integrate with MS Dynamics GP to record these 
GL entries automatically? 

4.2.2.7.10. Does the HRMS Payroll Module automatically calculate Workers 
Compensation premiums and Employers Health Tax premiums? 

4.2.2.7.11. Does the Payroll module have the function to facilitate year-end 
processing such as generating T4’s and making them available on the employee 
self-service portal?  

4.2.2.7.12. Does the HRMS system have the ability to handle more than one 
employer accounts for the same legal entity (for example, weekly payroll for one 
employee group under one account for CRA and semi-monthly payroll for 
another employee group)? 

4.2.2.7.13. Is the HRMS and Payroll module capable of converting approved 
timesheet hours to FTE counts and report out for departmental budgeting 
purposes? 

4.2.2.8. Scheduling, Time Tracking & Attendance Management 
4.2.2.8.1. Does the HRMS have a clock-in/clock-out function?  
4.2.2.8.2. If yes, is it possible to enable this for only certain 

departments/employees?  
4.2.2.8.3. If yes, which clock in/out methods are available? (E.g. swipe card, 

biometrics, etc.)  
4.2.2.8.4. Does the HRMS have the ability for employees to submit electronic 

timesheets which then get sent to their manager for approval? If yes, is it 
possible to enable this for only certain departments/employees? 
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4.2.2.8.5. Does the HRMS have a workforce scheduling feature or the ability to 
integrate with a third-party workforce scheduling software? 

4.2.2.8.6. Will the HRMS allow for different scheduling rules by department/position 
so that overtime is automatically calculated? (Different departments have 
different rules around when overtime is paid.) 

4.2.2.8.7. Is your HRMS able to make web services based API calls and ingest 
JSON/XML data streams from a flight crew workforce schedule system and 
create employee time sheets measured in calculated credits based on a 
configurable set of rules, conditions and parameters? 

4.2.2.9. General System Capabilities 
4.2.2.10. Does the HRMS have a configurable workflow engine to automate HR tasks? 
4.2.2.11. Does the HRMS integrate with Active Directory? 
4.2.2.12. Does the HRMS have employee and manager self-service portals? 

4.2.2.12.1. If so, what self-service features and functions are included? 
4.2.2.12.2. Can employees view their vacation and sick day banks? 
4.2.2.12.3. Can employees download their pay cheque stubs and T4’s 
4.2.2.12.4. Can managers pull reports or view information related to vacation time, 

overtime, absenteeism, etc.  
4.2.2.12.5. Can managers view absence patterns and trends? 
4.2.2.12.6. Can the HRMS alert a manager when the maximum allowable absences 

are reached? 
4.2.2.13. Does the HRMS have a mobile app or is it mobile-friendly? If so, please describe 

its capabilities and provide screenshots. 
 

4.2.3. Technical Capabilities 
4.2.3.1. Do you also have an ERP/Financials Package product offering? OR do you 

integrate with MS Dynamics GP / MS Dynamics Business Central. For either case, 
please provide details on the data integration your product(s) are able to achieve. 

4.2.3.2. Does your product line include a Learning Management System? OR do you 
integrate with an industry leading LMS product? Please provide details in terms of 
capabilities around training records, content development, course delivery, testing / 
examination, certification and expiry dates etc. 

4.2.3.3. What endpoint platforms does your HRMS support? E.g. Windows PC, MacOS, 
iOS, Android etc.  If it is browser based, what browsers are supported? What are the 
minimum system requirements for running your HRMS software? 

4.2.3.4. Does your HRMS software offer prebuilt connectors to third party services such 
as MS PowerAutomate, MS PowerApps, Adobe PDF Services, Adobe Sign, DocuSign 
etc. 

4.2.3.5. Does the HRMS allow for different permissions and access rules? (E.g. read 
only, read and write, view only certain areas of data, etc.) Please describe and 
illustrate how your HRMS handles access control for various levels of HR personnel, 
managers and staff. 

4.2.3.6. Please provide a high level software architecture and security framework 
employed by your HRMS software. 

4.2.3.7. Is your solution a SaaS based offering? Is it single tenanted or multi-tenanted? 
Are there any options for customization or is only configuration offered?  

4.2.3.8. How do you safeguard the HRMS data (both data at rest and data during 
transmission)? Are all HRMS data stored within Canada (including backups and high 
availability data centres)?  

4.2.3.9. Does your software allow customers to perform bulk data extractions for BI 
purposes? OR does your software allow certain BI platforms to directly query the 
HRMS data? If it’s the latter, please list the BI platforms that are supported. Otherwise 
please illustrate how you offer your customers the ability to perform bulk data 
extractions without the use of API’s and custom application development.   
 

4.2.4. Service Level Guarantees and Customer Support 
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4.2.4.1. Please provide details regarding your standard SLA.  If different SLA tiers are 
offered, please describe the details of each tier and provide costing information in 
section 4.2.6.6 

4.2.4.2. Customer Support: What are the available hours of support provided to your 
customers? Please provide days/times that your support desk is available should we 
have questions or technical problems post implementation 

4.2.4.3. Do you assign a dedicated Account Manager to your customer accounts? 
 

4.2.5. Implementation Services 
4.2.5.1. Methodology: Please describe your Implementation Methodology; what are the 

typical stages of implementing your HRMS product offering. 
4.2.5.2. What is your approach to data migration? Do you rely on your customers to 

perform the necessary data transformation in preparation for data migration or do you 
offer support in those areas? 

4.2.5.3. What are the resource requirements on the customer side?  How many customer 
side HR and IT staff do you typically require for a successful implementation of your 
HRMS system? How many hours do you need from each role? 

4.2.5.4. Timeframe: What is your typical implementation timeframe to rollout your HRMS 
product for the scope and size of PCA’s project as illustrated in the scope definition in 
this RFP? Please provide a high-level timeline for implementation. 

4.2.5.5. Resources: Please provide a list of resources that will be assigned to the 
implementation of your HRMS. Do you assign a project management, an 
implementation specialist, a business analyst or any other subject matter experts to 
aid with the implementation? 

4.2.5.6. What approach do you take to ensuring that our end users are trained in the 
HRMS system? 
 

4.2.6. Costs of HRMS and Implementation 
Please provide your pricing model for your HRMS product offering.  Breakdown the costs 
for ongoing subscription fees whether it be per user or per employee record or a 
combination of both or any other model vs. costs for the one-time implementation.  Your 
cost breakdown should be presented in a table form and clearly identify all costs to PCA 
including disbursements.  Please quote costs including all applicable taxes. Please include 
the cost information with the following details: 

4.2.6.1. One-time Implementation Fees; Roles and Hourly Rates; Fixed Price or Time & 
Materials based on tasks for each phase of the implementation. 

4.2.6.2. One-time registration or licensing fees where applicable; include any volume 
discounts. 

4.2.6.3. Ongoing Monthly/Annual Subscription Fees with commitment terms; include any 
volume discounts. 

4.2.6.4. If applicable, a Rate Card for additional resources that are optional to the 
implementation project 

4.2.6.5. Fee Schedule for any Optional Features / Functions or Additional Services / Add-
Ons 

4.2.6.6. Fees or Costs associated to higher levels of Service Level Guarantees. If your 
standard SLA does not meet the requirements of PCA (Section 1.1.7), what are the 
fees associated to this higher level of SLA? 
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5.0 Evaluation Guidelines 
 
Evaluation and short-listing of Respondent’s Proposal will be based on the following weighed evaluation 
criteria: 
 

Company Profile and Overview 5% 

Human Resource Management System Capabilities 35% 

Technical Requirements 20% 
Service Level Guarantees and Customer Support 15% 

Implementation Services 10% 
Costs 15% 

TOTAL 100% 
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Appendix A: Respondent RFP Response Form (RFP# 202101) 
(To be completed by the Respondent and included as the “RFP Cover Page” of the Proposal) 
 
I/We hereby offer the information in our response to PCA for review.  I/We understand that this 
information is provided in response to a Request for Proposal and that nothing in the RFP document 
should be construed as binding on PCA or that a contract need be awarded. By submitting this Proposal 
we agree to all terms and conditions stipulated in Section 2.0 of this RFP and agree that any 
inconsistencies in our Proposal will disqualify our submission.  We have carefully read and examined all 
sections of the RFP and agree to be bound by the statements and representations made in our Proposal. 
 

Signature of Authorized Signing Officer: 
 
 

Date: 
 

Printed Name of Authorized Signing Officer: 
 
 

Title of Authorized Signing Officer:  

Email of Authorized Signing Officer: 
 
 

Phone number of Signing Officer: 

Legal Business Name of Respondent: 
 
 

Other names under which your Company 
may operate: 

Business Address of Respondent: 
 
 

City:  
 
 

Province: 
 
 

Postal Code: 

Name of contact for this response 
submission: 
 
 

Title of contact for this response submission: 
 

Email of contact for this response 
submission: 
 
 

Phone number of contact for this response 
submission: 

□ References Enclosed as per recommended format in RFP Appendix B 
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Appendix B: Recommended format for List of References 
 
Please provide three (3) successful implementations of Human Resource Management System your 
organization has completed in the past three (5) years, that are similar in scope, size, and value to PCA’s 
requirements.  
 
PCA reserves the right to contact the references to confirm the nature of the work provided by a 
Respondent and to obtain additional references regarding the Respondent’s performance.  PCA will not 
enter into a contract with any Respondent whose references, in PCA’s sole opinion, are found to be 
unsatisfactory. 
 
ONLY USE CANADIAN COMPANIES AS REFRENCES. 
 
Respondents Company Name: _________________________________________ 
 

REFERENCE 1  

Company Name:  

Address:  
Contact Name:  

Phone Number:  

Brief Description of Project:  

REFERENCE 2  

Company Name:  

Address:  

Contact Name:  

Phone Number:  

Brief Description of Project:  

REFERENCE 3  

Company Name:  
Address:  

Contact Name:  

Phone Number:  

Brief Description of Project:  
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